PUBLIC NOTICE

City of Lockhart
Zoning Board of Adjustment
6:30 PM, Monday, December 6, 2021
Municipal Building — Glosserman Room
308 W. San Antonio St.

AGENDA

1. Call meeting to order.
2. Citizen comments not related to a public hearing item.
3. Consider the minutes of the July 12, 2021 meeting.

4. ZV-21-08. Hold a PUBLIC HEARING and consider a request by James and Laura Chambers for a
Variance to Appendix |, Chapter 64 “Zoning”, Lockhart Code of Ordinances, to allow a reduction in
the minimum required side-yard building setback from 5 feet to 3.25 feet for the rebuilding of an
existing stairway located outside of the home, which will be enclosed with an addition on
Lot 10, E.B. Flowers, consisting of 0.35 acre, zoned RMD {Residential Medium Density) and
located at 524 South Guadalupe Street.

5. ZV-21-09. Hold a PUBLIC HEARING and consider a request by Marc Scammerhorn on behalf of
IAM Properties Lockhart, LLC, for a Variance to Chapter 64 “Zoning”, Lockhart Code of
Ordinances, Section 64-197(g)(1)(e)}(2), to waive the requirement for paving driveways and
parking areas with an all-weather surface on the future Lot 1, Block A, Lockhart Industrial Park 11l
Section One, consisting of 10.101 acres in the Cornelius Crenshaw Survey, Abstract No. 68, zoned
IL {Industrial Light District) and located at 2701 Cahill Street.

6. Discuss the date and agenda of the next meeting,.

7. Adjourn.

Posted on the bulletin board in the Municipal Building, 308 West San Antonio Street,
Lockhart, Texas at 11:00 a.m. on the 1* day of December, 2021.



CITY OF LOCKHART
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
JULY 12, 2021

MINUTES
Members Present: Laura Cline, Wayne Reeder, Mike Annas, Anne Clark, Kirk Smith, Severo Castillo (by
phone), Lori Rangel (by phone)
Member Absent: Sean Martinez
Staff Present: Christine Banda, Kevin Waller

Others Present: Marjorie Tiemann (applicant, Agenda Item (4}}, Joel Perez, Fermin Islas, Marisa
Islas {applicant, Agenda Item (5))

1. Call meeting to order. Chair Cline called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

2. Citizen comments not related to a public hearing item. None

3. Consider the minutes of the June 7, 2021, meeting.

Vice-Chair Clark moved to approve the June 7, 2021, minutes. Member Annas seconded, and the
motion passed by a vote of 7-0.

4. FV-21-01. Hold a PUBLIC HEARING and consider a request by Marjorie Tiemann for a Variance to
Lockhart Code of Ordinances, Chapter 12, Section 12-490(3), to allow a six-foot tall privacy fence to
be placed in the front yard, extending along the south (side) property line to the front property line,
on 0.235 acre in the Francis Berry Survey, Abstract No. 2, zoned RMD Residential Medium Density
District and located at 406 Concho Street.

Planning Staff Kevin Waller presented his staff report to the Board. He informed them that Staff
received a letter in support of the variance request from a neighbor. The applicant wishes to place
a six-foot high privacy fence along the south (side) property line, which would encroach into the
required 20-foot front yard setback. Mr. Waller gave a PowerPoint presentation, including photos
of the property and the side property line where the fence would be placed. He stated that Staff
recommends denial but suggests an alternative solution to install tall shrubbery or dense
vegetation to help provide screening from the neighboring property to the south.

Chair Cline opened the public hearing and asked for the applicant to come forward.
Applicant Marjorie Tiemann of 406 Concho Street explained that she has had general problems

with her neighbor to the south. She would like to install the six-foot privacy fence to help provide
a barrier and promote more peaceful relations with her neighbor.

Zoning Board of Adjustment 07-12-21



Joel Perez of 408 Concho Street explained that although he is not opposed to the fence, he does
have two requests. Mr. Perez wants to ensure that the fence is placed on the actual side property
line and will not encroach onto his property. While the fence is being constructed, he does not
want any debris on his property. Perez stated that he has experienced harassment both from Ms.
Tiemann and her son, so the fence may or may not provide peace because his neighbors are natural
complainers.

Chair Cline asked for any other speakers; seeing or hearing from none, she closed the public
hearing.

Discussion ensued regarding precedent and civil matters.

Vice-Chair Clark moved to approve FV-21-01 because the Police Department suggested to the owner
that approval is a possible solution, and with the conditions that the fence be constructed on the
actual side property line, with no construction materials allowedto fall onto the neighbor’s property.
The motion failed for lack of a second.

Member Annas moved to deny FV-21-01. Member Reeder seconded, and the motion passed by a
vote of 6-1 with Vice-Chair Clark against.

ZV-21-07. Hold a PUBLIC HEARING and consider a request by Marisa Islas for a Variance to Appendix
|, Chapter 64 “Zoning”, Lockhart Code of Ordinances, to allow areduction in the minimum required
front-yard building setback from 25 feet to 19.7 feet, for a recently constructed single-family

residence on Lot 31, Islas Addition, consisting of 0.273 acre, zoned RLD (Residential Low Density

District) and located at 1700 Meadow Lane.

Mr. Waller presented a survey of the subject property showingthe new home’s encroachment into
the front-yard setback. According to correspondence with the Building Official, a form survey
should have been provided the City to confirm the location prior to construction. The survey was
unfortunately not provided until after the home was constructed. Mr. Waller explained that a
unique condition does exist, due to the illusion of the hame meeting the required front setback
since the street curves at this location. He stated that Staff recommends approval.

Chair Cline opened the public hearing asked for the applicant to come forward.

Fermin Islas of 1702 Meadow Lane, father of the applicant, stated that he gave the lot to his
daughter so that she could build a home. It was not their intention to build within the front-yard
setback. They were unaware of the increase in right-of-way width at the curve, and assumed that
it was of a normal width for a residential street. Mr. Islas apologized for not turning in the form
survey ahead of time, and asked for approval of the Variance. He continued that the home’s front
sethback appears like the others in the neighborhood.

Applicant Marisa Islas of 1700 Meadow Lane explained that there was a miscommunication during
the construction process, and that construction was completed during the pandemic. Ms. Islas
mentioned that approval of the Variance would not result in financial gain or loss, and that it
wouldn’t make sense to cut off part of the home to comply with the front setback requirement.
She apologized for the miscommunication between herself and the contractor.

Zoning Board of Adjustment 07-12-21



Chair Cline asked for any other speakers; seeing or hearing from none, she closed the public
hearing.

Member Clark moved to approve ZV-21-07. Member Smith seconded, and the motion passed by a
vote of 7-0.

Discuss the date and agenda of the next meeting.

Mr. Waller stated that the next regularly scheduled meeting would be held Monday, August 30,
2021, if applications are received by the deadline. No applications had been received by the July
12 deadline for the August 2 meeting.

Adjourn.

Member Clark moved to adjourn the meeting, and Member Annas seconded. The motion passed by
a vote of 7-0, and the meeting adjourned at 7:19 p.m.

Approved:

{Date)

Christine Banda, Recording Secretary Laura Cline, Chair

Zoning Board of Adjustment 07-12-21



”—'/ } -

-
i 07 \;2

ZV-21-08
524 S GUADALUPE ST

TO ALLOW A REDUCTION IN THE
SIDE YARD SETBACK FROM
5FTTO 3.25 FT TO CONSTRUCT
ADDITION TO ENCLOSE STAIRWAY

|| SUBJECT PROPERTY

- ZONING BOUNDARY

scale 1" = 200'







PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORT ZONING VARIANCE

CASE SUMMARY
STAFF CONTACT: Kevin Waller, Assistant City Planner W CASE NUMBER: 2V-21-08
REPORT DATE: December 1, 2021

PUBLIC HEARING DATE: December 6, 2021

APPLICANT’S REQUEST: Variance to Appendix | of Chapter 64 to allow a reduction in the
minimum required side-yard building setback from 5 feet to 3.25 feet.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Denial, due to failure to meet all six variance criteria.

BACKGROUND DATA

APPUCANT: Laura Chambers

OWNER: James and Laura Chambers

SITE LOCATION: 524 South Guadalupe Street

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Lot 10, E.B. Flowers

SIZE OF PROPERTY: 0.35 acre

EXISTING USE OF PROPERTY: Single-Family Residence

ZONING CLASSIFICATION: RMD (Residential Medium Density District)

ANALYSIS OF ISSUES

REASON FOR REQUESTED VARIANCE: The applicant proposes to enclose the existing, open-air
stairway on the south side of the existing residence by extending the stone wall encompassing the
stairs upward to the roof of the house, and extending the roof over the stairway. The existing wall on
the south side of the stairs, opposite the house, is three and one-quarter feet from the south (side)
property line. Also proposed is the construction of a sunroom addition to the front of the house,
which would also extend to three and one-quarter feet from the side property line, flush with the
proposed stairway enclosure.

AREA CHARACTERISTICS: The subject property is located within a primarily single-family residential
neighborhood zoned RMD, The adjacent property to the south, however, contains a duplex, which is
the only one in the area. There appear to be two properties along the same block as the subject
property, one on either side of the street, with accessory buildings encroaching into the required
five-foot side-yard setback.

UNIQUE CONDITIONS OF PROPERTY: The applicant explains that the existing stairway’s location on
the outside of the house creates a unique condition to the property, which presents safety issues
when walking from one level of the house to the other due to potential weather hazards that might
cause someone to slip when the stairs are wet or icy. The applicant also states that the concrete
landing at the top of the stairwell is deteriorating, presenting further safety hazards if the landing
were to collapse. Finally, the applicant explains that if the reconstructed stairs were moved closer to
the house to meet the required five-foot side-yard setback, they would not meet the minimum
36-inch width required by the Building Codes. Although Staff recognizes and supports the correction
of safety hazards associated with the stairwell, the existing conditions do not create a unique
condition that warrants an addition to the stairwell area within the required side-yard setback.
Further, any construction or reconstruction less then five feet from any property line does not meet
the City’s Fire Code spacing requirements.



NATURE OF HARDSHIP: Approval of the variance would not result in increased financial gain or
reduced financial hardship. However, the applicant states that she has been advised by a
professional engineer not to undertake any work on the exterior walls of the house itself, or to the
second-story flooring, as it would affect the house’s structural integrity. Therefore, if the variance
were denied and the applicant chose to add a new staircase as above, it would likely require
substantial reconstruction of the house and increased financial hardship.

EFFECT ON SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND PUBLIC SAFETY: The location of the existing stairwell
three and one-quarter feet from the side property line has not resulted in adverse impacts to
surrounding properties and public safety. As mentioned above, there are potential safety hazards
associated with the property owner’s continued use of the stairwell in its present state.

ALTERNATIVE SOLUTIONS: The applicant explains that the reconstruction of the stairs to meet the
required setbacks in the same or different exterior location, or in an interior location, is unfeasible, as
it would impact the structure’s integrity, as discussed above. However, an alternative solution is
simply to repair the existing staircase and concrete landing to a safe condition, which would still allow
a reasonable use of the property without a variance.

RESPONSE TO NOTIFICATION: None received as of the date of thisreport.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends denial of the variance request, which does not meet
all six of the variance review criteria. The owners were aware of the exposed stairway when they
purchased the property. However, this is not grounds for a variance, when safety issues can be
repaired without it. While the open stairway is not considered part of the enclosed footprint of the
house, the enclosure of the stairway and extending the interior footprint would create a
nonconforming situation.



CITY OF LOCKHART - SITE PLAN

APPLICANT NAME: _____ PHONE:
SITE ADDRESS: "'ﬁ-}q& ﬁ Qﬁ\}(\AA\\»Q_Q
PERMIT NUMBER: DATE:
PROPOSED WORK: . {
™ N\\Y) 30 \(\Lbr\\ ‘) o c\eﬁ \ O Renr
SUAL = (0 (
<_‘,__.W b0 >
3>
(S

“'., : ] g”
.‘ N ‘g =B fjr!r At .erejf
et Y I’D"(g(mﬂpw" m’ﬂ() /

A

| /[\ L oy " I(g‘?(mlf\\?&!\-w‘oﬁ’i’(/
izﬁf ¥ oo\ e » ‘. E

“ny 4 |

/

! (SRR AR
; |
Jo(’ﬁclf f‘j ‘ X '
L'\f'.'lJ'rG

,(ﬂ_-plf-((’mrw; n;p'ﬂefl &V 4ig v ) &C:'('*V*-\) |

Please indicate the following:
1. North arrow, scale of the drawing (e.g., 1”7 = 50 feet), property lines with dimensions, and abutting
streets and alleys;
2. Outline the location, size, and type of all structures with labels indicating whether existing or proposed;
show roof overhangs as dotted lines;
3. Distances between all existing and/or proposed structures (measuring from roof overhang, if any) as
well as from all existing and/or proposed structures to all property lines;
4. Location, type, and width of all known easements; and
Location, dimensions, and surface material of existing or proposed driveways and off-street parking
areas; specify the number of provided and required parking spaces. Planning staff can assist with this

requirement.

W




uonesijdde asueliep Suiuoy

1S adnjepenn S 4G



“SJ1B1S Y3 JO W0110q 3y} 1e dpISINo
a3 03 Suipea| Jo peaisul ‘siieIsumop
dpisul Y3} 01Ul ped| siiels 03 asnoy ayl
}JO JU0J4} 9Y3 03 (WOOIUNS)UOISUDIXD

UE p|Ing 03 i P|[NOM OS|Y

*SJ1e1s 9yl umop pue dn 138 03
9pIs1no 03 01 aAeY 1,uop syuednddo oS
‘Buipue| pue sJie1s apisino uisixa ay3

J9A0 JOOU B pue S||em ppe uay] ‘sJieis
2oe|daJ pue owap pue 3uipue| J1ejs
91240uU0d 22e|das pue owap 01 SUPISY .

"9JBS 10U dJE pue

(papo.iod sey |e1aW) a1n1oNJis ulew
woJj Aeme awod aney sJiels [elaw

Buiisixa — s11e1S Mau pjing 01 Supisy .

‘sJiels jo doy
1€ e[S 932J0U0D punosun AjjeanionJis
9Y1 22e|daJ pue owap 01 SURSY




‘(snosasuep)
punosun Ajjeanianuis pue 3uidojs
‘paxaeud SI ge|s 91a40uo) ‘Sulpue|
ge|s 91240U02 JO dO} 0} ped| SJIelS .



Lol

Iaﬁ A
aul| Apadoud wouy 8,/

‘punos Ajjesnionuls
10U S| pue ‘payoesd

"(Z¥6T Ul 3ing asnoy)

ul paJayiejpuedd ale siiels 3uilsixl

wouy (,26) .

8

*2ul| Apadoud
(L S!'||lEM 101131X3 9SNOH



f

aul| Auadoud
woJj €,€

aul|
Anadoud wouy ,S.¢

T I9NIMOH

*2ul| Auadoud ayl wouy Aeme
1JG 1Se3| 1k 3 01 |[|EM M3U B p|Ing pue ‘|jlem
2u03s |eullio ay)y owap 03 pasodoud taumo osg

‘aul| Ayuadoud syl wouy
1S 1se3| 1e 9 01} Sey uoI1dnNIISuUod mau Aue i1ng

"9pIsul q
PIN02 SJ1e1S 3yl 0S ‘JO0J B ppe pue ‘||em 3u0ls
PJO 3yl 01 uoI123s Jaddn ue ppe pue ‘siiels

jo doi 1e ge|s 91942U0d punosun AjjeJn3idnJs
3Y1 22e|das pue owap 0] I P|NOM JIBUMQ

?ul| Ajuadoud wouy
(«€S).E.€ S! [IEM BUOIS |eUISIIO JO BPIS USINQ  »

*aul| Aniadoud wody (,€5) .S S!
9SEDJUIe]S JO ||eM 2UO0]S |euUl3IIO JO IPIS JDUU|



‘9pIM ,9€ 1SeI| 1B 9 01 Spaau Aemuiels

""9P0I 199W 10U S0P YIIYM

"*aul] Apadoud syl wouy
4G 1e ||em mau e Ind am J| 4 49T = ||BM JOLI2IX3 UB 4O SSaUWydIy) 9 snuiw ,ze

«CE = (H45) auy

Avadoud wouy 09 snuiw ,z6 si aul Aladosd wouy asnoy 4o ||em J0LI3IX]

i

¥ ¥ -

:9pim 9z Ajuo 3uiaq dn spua Aemuiels ayl ‘siyl op am j| -

w

.C6 SI [|[EM JO1I9IXD 3SNOH

s e .ﬁz




) Aemuieas apim (,€1) ,2.€

=4 e ‘[lem Jieas Jo apis 421no 01 (,8S) 0T,V PUY

‘[|eMm J1els BU01s JO dpIS
Jauul 01 apIm (,£t) .L.€ Sl Aemarels Juaund .




"9p0o2

}232W 3, ,uom /molieu 0o} si jeyj osedulels e
SaAE3| N DJew 314G 3yl je }|Ing SI ||[eM Mmau e
PUE P ,OWSap sI [|em Jlels SU03S PO SulISIXa J|

"CY6T Ul l]ing Sem asnoy asnedaq

193W 1, Uop suiels pasaylejpuels yoiym
aul| Axadoud wouy 145 29 01 UOIIINIISUOD
mau Aue Joj si Juswalinbal apo)

i

"asnoy auo3s

urew ay3 wouy Aeme papouaiod aney Yoiym
SJIels |e}aw dde|das pue ‘219 ‘uns ‘mous
‘SWJ01s ‘uied ul apiIsIno 08 01 aAey 3,uop
9M OS SJIB)S UI9A0D ‘d0] 1 ge|s 91340U0D
SnoJa3uep owap 031 31| P|NOM J3UMQ
:deday




‘28e s11 0]

anp asnoy ay3 jo Aieded Sulieaqg-1ysiom
/21n12nJ1s ay3 o3 sadueyd Aue

dunjew jsuiede pasiape aney oual SuLinp
9snNoy ay1 uo 3uaom sia3uidua |eanidniis
SNoIABId "punosun AjjeinionJis 1 ayew
Y3iw sj|em 19310 € 3y} jo Aue Jo 1IN0 du0ls
Aue 3uinInd pue asnoy pjo ue si 3| "asnoy ay3
PUNOJE 3U01S 9] Ul S}IBJD SWOS aJe auay)|
:ula0u0)

‘asnoy

9y1 JO s||em € 13Yl0 ay3} JO SUO UOo SJIels 3yl
ind 01 A13 pue ‘Aj919)dwod sJiels syl owa(
(v) uonnjos 3|qissod



‘Aldeded |eanjonuls ayj 1094 1ysiw

11 Se 9sedJlIe)s |edids e 40} WOOJ I ew 0] uo
Yy8nouyy 1nd 01 Aysu AJan aq pjnom 11 pue
‘@8e wouy 3es s1s10 ay3 Inq aun3aid ayy ul
93s 01 pJey s3] “sistol ayy Jo z 40 T ySnoayy
1N2 01 3AeY p|nom am ‘aseddiels |edids

B JJ9sul 0] U9pJo u| “uede ,zz 1noge padeds
‘s, ZX8 uapoom p|o jo sisiol ase saieysdn

9U3 JO 100]} /saieisumop 3y} jo 3ul)iad ayl
:UJ22U0)

'9sNoy ay1 apisul aseauiels |eaids e 1nd
:(g) uonnjos a|qissod



"UOI1RIDPISUOI pUE B INOA 10} NOA yuey |
"8SNOY 9Y3) JO SSAUPUNOS |BINIINIIS DY JDD44E O] JUBM 1,US0P 3YS Ing

"9p02 133W |[11S pue ‘Joou
Pue sjem e Aq paJanod 2 0} pue ‘sjes aq 01 SJIBIS P|INGaJ 01 SABM JaY10 JO Uiyl 0} pau sey JaumQ



Submittal Requirements:

1. A unique physical condition exists within or adjacent to the subject tract or structure(s) located
thereon which distinguishes it from other similarly situated, and which creates an exceptional
hardship, difficulty, or inequity that would result from literal enforcement of the ordinance;

e Yes. The house was built of stone in 1942. The stairway was built on the outside of the house,
supported by a half-wall, also made of stone. At the top of the stairs, the occupant can enter/
exit the upstairs of the house via a concrete landing. This concrete fanding is cracked, sloping
and structurally unsound. The metal stairs outside the house have corroded away from the
house and are not stable and are slippery when wet.

The 80-year-old half-wall which supports the stairs sits at 3'3” from the property line. Qwner
would like to demo and replace the sloping concrete landing and old metal stairs which are
supported by this stone wall, and extend the wall up to the roofline, and add a roof, so owner/
occupants don’t have to go outside to access upstairs/ downstairs. Currently, owners have to go
outside to get up and down the stairs, which results in getting wet if it's raining and occupant
needs to access bathroom {upstairs), being wary when going outside/ downstairs at night to get
a glass of water from the kitchen, slipping on icy stairs in winter, being worried that the concrete
landing is going to crack and collapse when they step on it to go upstairs/ downstairs, etc.

The reason the owner would like to keep stairs in the same location, and use the same doorway
location into the upstairs that already exists {per house’s original construction) is because
drilling out stone bricks to make a new doorway to the upstairs on one of the other three stone
walls of the house {(which would meet setback requirements} would compromise the structural
integrity of the house. A structural engineer has already advised in conversation not to make
any changes to the structure of the house due to its age. Owner has also considered inserting a
spiral staircase inside, but this would also compromise the structural integrity of house.

2. The condition or characteristic noted above is not caused by an action of the property owner,
occupant, or applicant;

No — the existing wall, stair landing and stairs are grandfathered in.

3. The variance is the minimum amount necessary to allow a reasonable use of the property;

Yes —the owners are worried that the concrete landing is going to crack and fall in one day, and are
nervous this could happen when their small son is walking on the landing. The metal stairs are also
slippery when wet/ icy and are not sturdy. The owners have to use the stairs in all different types of
weather and times of day to get from upstairs to downstairs (in rain, snow, at night if they forgot
something upstairs or downstairs.)



4, The sole reason for the variance is not a desire of the owner, occupant, or applicant for
increased financial gain or reduced financial hardship;

No.

5. The variance will not adversely affect public health or safety, and will not substantially or
permanently interfere with the appropriate use of adjacent conforming property in the same
district; and,

No — the health and safety of the use of the property would be improved. It would not interfere with the
appropriate use of the adjacent confirming property.

6. The variance will not alter the essential character of the zoning district within which the subject
property is located, and is in harmony with the intent and purposes of the zoning ordinance.

No — being able to preserve and not demo the existing stone half-wall would not alter the essential
character of the zoning district.



CITY OF

ZONING VARIANCE APPLICATION

TEXAS [512)398:3461 + FAX/[512) 398-3833
P.O. Box 239 « Lockhart, Texas 78644

APPLICANT/OWNER ” 308 WgsiSai;nigiioSrreer
appLicanT nave Laura Chambers Aporess D24 S Guadalupe St
pav-Tive TeLepHone £ 379909919 Lockhart, TX 78644
£y 92lbraith.laura@gmail.com |
OWNER NAME James & Laura Chambers ADORESS 524 S Guadalupe St
oay-tive TeLeprone /979909919 Lockhart, TX 78644
E-MAIL galbraith.laura@gmail.com
PROPERTY

ADDRESS OR GENERAL LocaTion 924 S Guadalupe St
LEGAL DESCRIPTION (IF PLATTED) EB Flowers Lot 10

size -39 acres) ZONING cLassIFicaTion RMD
EXISTING USE OF LAND ANDIOR BUILDING(s) Oingle Family Residential

REQUESTED ZONING VARIANCE

VARIANCE TO SECTION(S) AD*QN\\ OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE

CURRENT ORDINANCE REQUIREMENT(S) 5_ 'F o Silx- \\mv\, Setoa

REQUESTED VARIANCE(S) Owner would like to demo and replace existing grandfathered-in concrete slab of

stairs landing, and adjoining metal stairs, which are located outside of the house. And then build on top of the existing

stone wall to complete that wall up to roof level, and add a roof, so stairs would be inside. The stairs and landing are not

structurally sound (concrete slab is sloping, cracked and unsafe, and metal stairs have corroded away from main

house and are slippery when wet). Grandfathered-in stairs do not meet required 5ft side yard setback. They are at the
3'3" mark, instead of at the 5ft mark (wall is 13-14" thick). If existing wall at side of stairs is moved closer to the main
house to meet required 5ft setback, resulting stairway would be less than 36" (code requirement for width of a
stairway.)



SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

IF THE APPLICANT IS NOT THE OWNER, A LETTER SIGNED AND DATED BY THE OWNER
CERTIFYING THEIR OWNERSHIP OF THE PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING THE APPLICANT TO
REPRESENT THE PERSON, ORGANIZATION, OR BUSINESS THAT OWNS THE PROPERTY.

IF NOT PLATTED, A METES AND BOUNDS LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY.

A WRITTEN STATEMENT DOCUMENTING THE REASON FOR THE VARIANCE(S), INCLUDING
EVIDENCE THAT THE REQUEST COMPLIES WITH THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA AS REQUIRED FOR
APPROVAL OF A VARIANCE.

1. A unique physical condition exists within or adjacent to the subject tract or structure(s) located
thereon which distinguishes it from other similarly situated, and which creates an exceptional
hardship, difficulty, or inequity that would result from literal enforcement of the ordinance;

2. The condition or characteristic noted above is not caused by an action of the property owner,
occupant, or applicant;

3. The variance is the minimum amount necessary to allow a reasonable use of the property;

4. The sole reason for the variance is not a desire of the owner, occupant, or applicant for
increased financial gain or reduced financial hardship;

5. The variance will not adversely affect public health or safety, and will not substantially or
permanently interfere with the appropriate use of adjacent conforming property in the same
district; and,

6. The variance will not alter the essential character of the zoning district within which the subject
property is located, and is in harmony with the intent and purposes of the zoning ordinance.

SITE PLAN, SUBMITTED ON PAPER NO LARGER THAN 11” X 17", SHOWING: 1) Scale and north arrow;
2) Location of site with respect to streets and adjacent properties; 3) Property lines and dimensions;
4) Location and dimensions of buildings; 5) Building setback distances from property lines; 6) Location,
dimensions, and surface type of off-street parking spaces and loading areas; and, 7) any other proposed
features of the site which are applicable to the requested variance.

APPLICATION FEE OF § 1 50 PAYABLE TO THE CITY OF LOCKHART AS FOLLOWS:

1/4 acre or less $125
Between 1/4 acre and one acre $150
One acre or greater $170 plus $20.00 per each acre over one acre

TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, THIS APPLICATION AND ASSQOCIATED DOCUMENTS ARE
COMPLETE AND CORRECT, AND IT IS UNDERSTOOD THAT | OR ANOTHER REPRESENTATIVE
SHOULD BE PRESE}AT ALL PUBLIC MEETINGS CONCERNING THIS APPLICATION.

SIGNATURE // pATE_ /7 /15/@




OFFICE USE ONLY

ACCEPTED BY KW\“ \NAN RecEIPT NuMBer \O& VS X G
oaTe susmiTTED W/ \S7 2\ case numBerzv- XN . OB
DATE NOTICES MAILED |\~ Lt DATE NOTICE PUBLISHED \\- 2520\

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MEETING DATE _\ 2=/ /N

DECISION

CONDITIONS




.

o

R (MKSTRRY =

RHD

gN Add ZAAVHD ¥¥S3O N

ZV-21-09

2701 CAHILL STREET

TO WAIVE THE REQUIREMENT
FOR PAVING DRIVEWAYS & PARKING
AREAS WITH AN ALL-WEATHER SURFACE

|| SUBJECT PROPERTY

|| ZONING BOUNDARY

scale 1" = 600'




Y it

ANTONIO ST (HWY.142




PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORT ZONING VARIANCE

CASE SUMMARY
STAFF CONTACT: Kevin Waller, Assistant City Planner \(\/\/ CASE NUMBER: ZV-21-09
REPORT DATE: December 1, 2021

PUBLIC HEARING DATE: December 6, 2021
APPLICANT’S REQUEST: Variance to Section 64-197(g)(1)(e}(2) to waive the paved, all-weather
surface requirement for an off-street parking and driveway area
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of the Variance for the proposed areas of crushed concrete
except for the area extending from the northeast corner of the
building to the east property line.

BACKGROUND DATA

APPLICANT: Marc Scammerhorn

OWNER: Lockhart Economic Development Corporation

BUYER: IAM Properties - Lockhart, LLC

SITE LOCATION: 2701 Cahill Street

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Future Lot 1, Block A, Lockhart Industrial Park Il Section One (currently
Cornelius Crenshaw Survey, Abstract No. 68)

SIZE OF PROPERTY: 10.101 acres

EXISTING USE OF PROPERTY: Vacant

ZONING CLASSIFICATION: IL (Industrial Light District)

ANALYSIS OF ISSUES

REASON FOR REQUESTED VARIANCE: The applicant proposes to develop the property with an
industrial manufacturing facility for the McElroy Metals company. While the main parking area along
the south and east sides of the proposed building will be constructed of reinforced concrete, the
applicant proposes to utilize a crushed concrete material for a driveway, circulation area, and trailer
parking on the north and west sides of the building. The requested variance is to allow the crushed
concrete surface and waive the paved, all-weather parking surface requirement set forth in Zoning
Ordinance Section 64-197(g)(1)(e)(2) for the areas identified above. The crushed concrete areas will
be used by raw material trucks, and will not be visible from Cahill Street according to the applicant.
The applicant would like to have the ability to expand the building to the northwest in the future, and
explains that reinforced concrete or asphalt is more difficult and expensive to remove than the
proposed crushed concrete. The applicant further explains that if the building expansion does not
occur within the next ten years, the crushed concrete will be replaced with reinforced concrete or
asphalt. The subject property is part of a recently approved subdivision, Lockhart Industrial Park IlI
Section One, the final plat of which was approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission in August
2021. Since the plat has not yet been recorded, the subject lot does not yet legally exist, and no
construction activity may commence until after the plat has been recorded and the necessary permits
issued.



AREA CHARACTERISTICS: The adjacent properties to the north and east of the subject property are in
agricultural use, with the property to the north being located outside the City limits. To the south is
the proposed Section Two of Lockhart Industrial Park lll. Across F.M. 2720 to the west is a property in
agricultural and rural residential use, also outside the City limits. As this property is located on the
fringe of the City limits, there are no examples of other properties in the area with unpaved parking
lots.

UNIQUE CONDITIONS OF PROPERTY: The property is currently undeveloped and of level terrain, with
no unique topographical features.

NATURE OF HARDSHIP: Although there would be reduced financial hardship associated with not
paving certain portions of the proposed parking and circulation areas, the request for the variance is
not based exclusively upon the applicant’s desire to avoid the cost of paving. The applicant states
that the primary reason for the variance is to allow for future expansion of the proposed building into
the areas proposed with a crushed concrete surface. However, a desire for future expansion does
not necessarily constitute a hardship caused by any unique condition of the property.

EFFECT ON SURROQUNDING PROPERTY AND PUBLIC SAFETY: The applicant states, and Staff agrees,
that the variance will not interfere with surrounding properties and will not adversely impact public
health or safety.

COMPLIANCE WITH VARIANCE CRITERIA: In order to approve a variance, the Board must find that the
request meets all six of the criteria outlined in Section 64-129{a) of the Zoning Ordinance. The
applicant submitted the attached written explanation as evidence in support of the variance. Staff
believes that the variance request warrants approval, if the Board determines that all six variance
criteria are met, except for the area extending from the northeast corner of the building to the east
property line. This area will likely see more truck traffic than the other proposed crushed concrete
areas, and also includes six trailer parking spaces, which would be better served with an all-weather
surface.

ALTERNATIVE SOLUTIONS: An alternative solution includes constructing the proposed crushed
concrete areas in accordance with the paved, all-weather surface standards. An all-weather surface
is defined as either reinforced concrete, asphalt, or masonry pavers installed in accordance with
manufacturer's specifications. This alternative would avoid the need for a variance.

PRECEDENT: Staff's suggested compromise to grant a variance for a portion of the area proposed to
be crushed concrete, while requiring that the trailer parking and maneuvering area abutting the

paved parking lot be an all-weather surface, might avoid setting an undesirable precedent.

RESPONSE TO NOTIFICATION: None, as of the date of this report.



N 58 31" 44" E 800"-0"

)

80" ROW

F.M. HIGHWAY NO. 2720 (

WROUGHT IRON

PROP, B'—

CHAIN LINK
FENCE

5
3

A
Propag cHam
LN FENCE wTH
PLASTIC S5LATS

TITTTITITIT

B" CRUSHED
'CONCRETE
13
3
v o
ab o
. g
i b
B
[ 5
-
. .
L
>
N
v
-]
i
b
»

i
'
PROP m\_
CHAIN LINK
FENCE
'
|

..................

=zssrssEEEsssssEETssEEEuTTsaEEETTEsaE v

LANDSCAPE SITE PLAN

EMBOSSED METAL PANELS WILL BE USED ON THE OFFICE FACADES,

MCELROY MULT! RIB WALL PANELS FOR ALL OTHER AREAS. REFER TO SHEET M.1.
PROVIDING DIFFERENT ROOF HEGHTS.

PROVIDING SEATING ANG LANOSCAPING NEAR OFFICE BUILDING.. RE: SMEET A2.2.
NO PARKING AREA EXTENDS PAST THE BUILDNG.

MORE THAN 10X OF SITE WiLL BE SEEDED WITH GRASS.

LANDSCAPE SHRUBBERY WiLL BE PROVIDED ALONG BOTH CaMiLL STREET,
AND F.M. 2720.

PARKING LOT TREES WILL PROVIDED TO MEET THiS RECUIREMENT,

—x m

2 EAF

®

LVE OAX — 2" CAUPER AT 24” ABOVE GROUND
MATURE HEIGHT OF 40-80 FEET, SPAN 60-100 FEET

WAXLEAF LIGUSTRUMS, 367 TALL WHEN PLANTED,
MATURE HEIGHT OF 15-25 FEET.

BONUS FEATURES INCORPORATED @7 mmoc_mmS_

@ PLAN

LEGEND |

©)

UPERIOR

Building Systems

SBS PROJECT NO. 370

NEW MANUFACTURING BLDG
FOR
MCELROY METALS
LOCKHART, TEXAS

o

evision
e leion

O 10/13/21 PERMIT AND
CONSTRUCTION
1 11/03/21 PLAN REVIEW
COMMENTS
2 11/18/21 PLAN REVIEW
COMMENTS
3 12/02/21 PLAN REVIEW
COMMENTS

Sheet lssue
e Decrplan
10/13/21  FOR PERMIT AND

11/03/21  FOR PERMIT AND
11/15/21  FOR PERMIT AND

12/02/21  FOR PERMIT AND

Sheet Title

LANDSCAPE
SITE PLAN

Project Number

File 1D

Sheet No.

AO.1




IAM Properties — lockhart, L.1.C.
P O Box 1148
Shreveport, Lovisiona 71163-1148

November 17, 2021

Building Official
City of Lockhart, Texas

Re: Variance Request
Dear Sir or Madam:

IAM Properties - Lockhart, LLC is asking for a variance for all weather parking and surface
material requirements. We will address the six questions for the approval of the variance.

1. The reason for this is because IAM Properties - Lockhart, LLC would like the ability
to expand the building to the northwest in the future, and concrete or asphalt is

more difficult and expensive to remove. If the expansion does not happen within
the next 10 years, we will replace the crushed concrete with asphalt or concrete.

2. The condition will be caused by the property owner.
3. It is the amount necessary to allow reasonable use ofthe property.

4. The reason for the variance is not for financial gain or to reduce financial hardship
of owner,

5. The variance will not adversely affect public health or safety and will not
substantially or permanently interfere with the appropriate use of adjacent
conforming property in the same district.

6. The variance will not alter the character of the zoning ordinance.
Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

[ et

lan A. McElroy
Manager



IAM Properties requests that crushed concrete be allowed for a road on the north side on our property
{2701 Cahill, Lockhart, TX). This road will be used for raw material trucks and will not be visible from
Cahill road. The reasoning behind wanting this area to be crushed concrete is that this area will be the
“future expansion” of the building. If we are to pour concrete or lay asphalt, this area would have to be
removed when adding on to the building.

-
R

——

Marc Scammerhorn S
McElroy Metal Mill,

Representing IAM properties.




CITY OF

L 0 Ckh ar t 'ZONING VARIANCE APPLICATION

TEXAS [512) 3983461 + FAX(512) 3983833
APPLICANT/OWNER R O O e ranic e
APPLICANT NAME M inC  ScAM melisods) ADDRESS 570 idasiiown  da
DAY-TIME TELEPHONE 8lie (il (234, Bosereh ¢y oA il

E-MAIL M & ¢ i m o £ o) @2 MACE Lgomgme. Coin

OWNER NAME T AM [ feriad | ywes ADDRESS

DAY-TIME TELEPHONE S L llp (223 (,

E"MA' L oo L t{\‘t’u-'} (:; f-’{(wl'.’ l.,{'?u,l-f:\/i LoV . Cew

PROPERTY

I Tinal T\ e bo
ADDRESS OR GENERAL LOCATION _ < /< | CHHd e S tecocdad Seral

LEGAL DESCRIPTION (IF PLATTED) Lo | B\lode A Lodkhmany Ta\ P IO

Seckion One,

SIZE !b,\‘ ACRE(S) ZONING CLASSIFICATION IL—

EXISTING USE OF LAND AND/OR BUILDING(S) \/o\ t—"\'\é"

REQUESTED ZONING VARIANCE, .
VARIANCE TO SECTION(S). G A -\ "33 (Wle) () oF THE ZONING ORDINANGE
CURRENT ORDINANGCE REQU!REMENT (S) Dnvbwm_\)' X Qoug-\g\m\ aceas Lote- Shrexy)
PAVRN \O-m P\VQA v-/f A m\\—wq_,a\-\-'\w\,c su.,;:ée\ub -\ R,
"N.é.o\c\-n\\- Co nc,(e.’ﬂz, oc Mchv\rd\ 9"\.%? s.

REQUESTEDVARIANCE(S) CrosinéB ' Cowiparm g alanrr  sioe o F

prioie— B WeSY Sia dc__\m:\\\:\j a5 WO\,




SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

IF THE APPLICANT IS NOT THE OWNER, A LETTER SIGNED AND DATED BY THE OWNER
CERTIFYING THEIR OWNERSHIP OF THE PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING THE APPLICANT TO
REPRESENT THE PERSON, ORGANIZATION, OR BUSINESS THAT OWNS THE PROPERTY.

IF NOT PLATTED, A METES AND BOUNDS LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY.

A WRITTEN STATEMENT DOCUMENTING THE REASON FOR THE VARIANCE(S), INCLUDING
EVIDENCE THAT THE REQUEST COMPLIES WITH THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA AS REQUIRED FOR
APPROVAL OF A VARIANCE.

1. A unique physical condition exists within or adjacent to the subject tract or structure(s) located
thereon which distinguishes it from other similarly situated, and which creates an exceptional
hardship, difficulty, or inequity that would result from literal enforcement of the ordinance;

2. The condition or characteristic hoted above is not caused by an action of the property owner,
occupant, or applicant; :

3. The varlance is the minimum amount necessary to allow a reasonable use of the property;

4. The sole reason for the variance is hot a desire of the owner, occupant,‘ or applicant for
‘increased financial gain or reduced financial hardship;

5. The variance will not adversely affect public health or safety, and will not substantially or
permanently interfere with the appropriate use of adjacent conforming property in the same
district; and,

6. The variance will not alter the essential character of the zoning district within which the subject
property is located, and is in harmony with the intent and purposes of the zoning ordinance.

SITE PLAN, SUBMITTED ON PAPER NO LARGER THAN 11" X 17", SHOWING: 1) Scale and north arrow,
2) Location of site with respect to streets and adjacent properties; 3) Property lines and dimensions;
4) Location and dimensions of buildings; 5) Building setback distances from property lines; 6) Location,
dimensions, and surface type of off-street parking spaces and loading areas; and, 7) any other proposed
features of the site which are applicable to the requested variance.

- O )

LWL L ‘_\‘ o
APPLICATION FEE OF $-"< ™~ PAYABLE TO THE CITY OF LOCKHART AS FOLLOWS:

1/4 acre or less $125
Between 1/4 acre and one acre $150
One acre or greater $170 plus $20,00 per each acre over one acre

TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, THIS APPLICATION AND ASSOCIATED DOCUMENTS ARE
COMPLETE AND CORRECT, AND IT IS UNDERSTOOD THAT | OR ANOTHER REPRESENTATIVE
SHOULD BE PRES%AT ALL PUBLIC MEETINGS CONCERNING THIS APPLICATION.

7,.»;;2/ R
SIGNATURE~Z L

. )
s .,.‘:’."f-‘fr”!r‘l{'. 2 i

DATE Gl BT S




OFFICEUSEONLY

ACCEPTED BY Ktv‘w\ WA RECEIPTNUMBER \ T4 \G:'}O
paTE susMITTED _\\ / \ &/ 7"-\ CASENUMBERZV- &\ - I9
DATE NOTICES MAILED |Il= ZL-"T0nA DATE NoTIcE pusLisHeD |l = 28-1o]

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MEETING DaTe . S/ o/ 2N

DECISION

CONDITIONS




